
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705  MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

MARCH 18, 2013 

6:30 P.M. 
                                                                              

 

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION / Reverend Charles Jackson / Macedonia Missionary Baptist Church 

      PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:    Council meeting minutes / March 4, 2013 

                                           Special Called Council meeting minutes / March 5, 2013 

                                           Council Work Session minutes / March 11, 2013 

 

PRESENTATION:            Olde Towne Map / Olde Towne Daphne West / Downtown Redevelopment  

                                                                              Authority 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:        Zoning Amendment:  Lynne R. Brown 

                                       Location:                   Northwest of the intersection of 6
th

 Street & Dryer Avenue 

                                       Present Zoning:         R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential District 

                                       Requested Zoning:    R-6, Garden or Patio Home District 

                                       Recommendation:     Favorable                                       

                                                                 

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A. FINANCE COMMITTEE / Conaway  

        Review minutes / March 11
th

  
        1.)  Ordinances: 

              a.)  Appropriation of Funds: Profit Drive Extension: Additional Appropriation / Ordinance 2013-15  

              b.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Road Striping & Marking Projects / Ordinance 2013-16 

              c.)  Lodging Tax Fund Appropriation: Pedestrian Bridge @D’Olive Creek West / Ordinance 2013-17 

              d.)  Designating Signatories on Various Accounts of the City of Daphne / Ordinance 2013-18 

              e.)  Intergovernmental Service Agreement with Baldwin County / Round-a-bout @ County Road 13 & 

                    County Road 64 / Ordinance 2013-19 

 

       2.)   Resolutions: 
              a.)  Bid Award:  2013-C-ADECA Pedestrian Bridge @D’Olive Creek West / Asphalt Services, Inc. 

                    Resolution 2013-15 
              b.)  Bid Award: 2013-F-ConcreteMaterial / Ready Mix USA, LLC / Resolution 2013-16 

              c.)  Bid Award:  2013-G-Asphalt / Mobile Asphalt Company, LLC / Resolution 2013-17 

              d.)  Bid Award: 2013-H-Plastic Pipe / Vellano Brothers, Inc. / Resolution 2013-18 

              e.)  Bid Award:  2013-I-Rock Material / Martin Marietta Aggregates / Resolution 2013-19 

              f.)  Bid Award:  2013-J-Office Supplies / Gulf Coast Office Products / Resolution 2013-20 

              g.)  Bid Award: 2013-K-PD/LiveScan Fingerprint System / Afix Technologies, Inc. / Resolution 2013-21 

              h.)  Bid Award: L-Recycled Rock Material / Asphalt Services / Resolution 2013-22 

 

       3.)   a.)  Motion for the Mayor & Finance Director to negotiate with Gardnyr Michael Capital (Pfil Hunt) for  

                    the refunding of the 2003 & 2006 Bond Issues, and use Hand Arendall for Bond Counsel, and report   

                    back to Finance Committee 

 

              b.)  Motion to increase the Daily Meal Allowance (current rate of $51/day) and to adjust annually with the    

                    IRS Regional Rate according to the location of training. 

 

1



 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                        MARCH 18, 2013                              PAGE   3 

 

       4.)   Financial Reports: 

               a.)  Treasurers Report / February 28, 2013 

               b.)  Sales & Use Tax Collections / January 31, 2013 

               c.)  Lodging Tax Collections / January 31, 2013 

               d.)  Available Capital Funds / February 28, 2013 

   
  B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE-  Davis 

        Review minutes / February 4
th

  

        Review minutes / March 4
th

  

                  

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell        

 D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  - Fry 

       Review minutes / March 13
th

  

 

 E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  LeJeune 

       Review minutes / February 18
th

          

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones           

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority - Conaway  

        Review minutes / February 27
th

   

 

  C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis 

        Review minutes / February 25
th

  

    

  D.  Library Board  - Lake 
  E.  Planning Commission – Scott     

        Review minutes / January 31
st
  

   

  F.  Recreation Board  -  LeJeune   

  G. Utility Board - Fry           

         

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report 

    B.  City Attorney’s Report 

   C.  Department Head Comments 

        City Clerk Report:   Parade Permit / Citrin Safety Foundation / 5K and 1 Mile Fun Run / October 19, 2013  

                                         Parade Permit / Bayside Medical Missions / 5K & 1 Mile Fun Run / September 21, 2013 

                                         AL League of Municipalities Annual Convention Voting Delegate / May 20, 2013 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

     

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
   

  RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)  Declaring Certain Property Surplus / 2003 Crown Vic. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-14 

 

 

2



 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                        MARCH 18, 2013                              PAGE   3 

 

 

b.) Bid Award:  2013-C-ADECA Pedestrian Bridge @D’Olive Creek West /  

     Asphalt Services, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-15 

                     

c.)  Bid Award: 2013-F-ConcreteMaterial / Ready Mix USA, LLC. . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-16 

 

d.)  Bid Award:  2013-G-Asphalt / Mobile Asphalt Company, LLC. . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-17 

 

e.)  Bid Award: 2013-H-Plastic Pipe / Vellano Brothers, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-18 

 

f.)  Bid Award:  2013-I-Rock Material / Martin Marietta Aggregates. . . . . . . . . .  ./Resolution 2013-19 

 

g.)  Bid Award:  2013-J-Office Supplies / Gulf Coast Office Products. . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-20 

 

h.)  Bid Award: 2013-K-PD/LiveScan Fingerprint System /  

                            Afix Technologies, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-21 

 

i.)   Bid Award: L-Recycled Rock Material / Asphalt Services. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-22 

 

 

 ORDINANCES:    

      

        

a.)  Amend Land Use & Development Ordinance / Appendix O, Impact  

      Development & Green Infrastructure. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-12 

 

 

        1
ST

 READ  

b.)  Zoning Amendment: Lynne R. Brown / R-2, Medium Density Single 

      Family Residential District to R06, Garden or patio Home District. . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-14 

 

c.)  Appropriation of Funds: Profit Drive Extension: Additional Appropriation. . . . . . Ordinance 2013-15  

 

d.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Road Striping & Marking Projects. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-16 

 

e.)  Lodging Tax Fund Appropriation: ADECA Pedestrian Bridge  

      @D’Olive Creek West/. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-17 

 

f.)  Designating Signatories on Various Accounts of the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-18 

 

g.)  Intergovernmental Service Agreement with Baldwin County /  

      Round-a-bout @ County Road 13 & County Road 64 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-19 

 

    

 9.   COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 

3



 

 

 

ROLL CALL 

APPROVE MINUTES 

4



MARCH  4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

1 

    

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. 

  

2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Reverend Samford Turner Executive Presbyter: Presbytery of South Alabama gave the invocation. 

  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake Randy Fry; 

Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis, III. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, Interim City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; David 

McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Vickie Hinman, Human 

Resource Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; 

Tonja Young, Library Director; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant;  Rick Whitehead, IT; Larry 

Cooke, BZA; Philip Durant, BZA; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; Willie Robison, BZA; Joe 

Lemoine, Planning Commission; Douglas Dugat, Recreation Board; Al Guarisco, Village Point 

Foundation; Pfil Hunt, Gardyner Michael Capital. 

 

Absent:  Kim Briley, Finance Director. 

 

SWEARING IN:   Joe Davis, III / Judge James H. Reid 

 

Judge Reid swore in Councilman Davis with his wife Norma holding the Bible. 

 

Councilman Davis took his seat on council. 

 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: FEBRUARY 18, 2013 COUNCIL MEETING & FEBRUARY 25,   

                                              2013 SPECIAL CALEED COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 

There were no corrections to the February 18, 2013 Council Meeting minutes or the February 25, 

2013 Special Called Council meeting minutes, and they stand as approved. 

 

 

4.  REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The next meeting will be Monday at 4:00 p.m. 

 

     B.  Buildings and Property Committee – Fry 

They are working on wireless access to the Daphne Museum.  The new Civic Center website is up, 

and revenues are up.  They are adding a flag pole at Patriots Point to represent the Merchant 

Marines.  Mr. Davis will be on the committee starting with the next meeting. 

 

5



MARCH  4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell 

The minutes for the February 13
th

 meeting are in the packet. There is citizens from District 2 and 

District 5 that will be at the next meeting with concerns.   

 

   D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

There is an ordinance on the agenda amending the Animal Control Ordinance.  The fines for Noisy 

Animals have been amended to strengthen the ordinance a little bit.  They want to be proactive 

instead of reactive.  The fines have been amended to 1
st
 Offense $100, 2

nd
 Offense $250 and 3

rd
 

Offense $500 and court appearance.  The next meeting will be March 13
th

.    Mr. Ross stated that 

he will have an ordinance that combines all the amendments to the ordinance into one for the work 

session.  

 

E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

Nomination for the Environmental Advisory Board:  R. Elliot Riser 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to appoint Mr. R. Elliot Riser to the Environmental 

Advisory Board.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED         MOTION CARRIED 

 

                                                                                 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones 

No meeting for March. 

 

B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The January 19
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The meeting day has changed from the fourth Monday 

of the month to the fourth Wednesday of the month. 

        
C. Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The board met February 25
th 

and granted a tax abatement for Algae Systems.  The next meeting 

will be the fourth Monday of the month.  Mr. Davis will be the council liaison for the board from 

now on. 

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

Mr. Lake reported that Daphne had the highest usage of any Library in the county.  On March 7
th

 

the WWII Series will start again being held at City Hall in the council chambers starting at 6:00 

p.m. on Thursday evening. 

 

E. Planning Commission – Scott 

Council President Scott reported that the commission met last Thursday where they had several 

subdivision submissions Dunmore and The Retreat at Tiawasee. The Retreat at Tiawasee will be 

coming back to council for annexation.  The Land Use Ordinance says that if Daphne supplies the 

6



MARCH  4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

water they have to annex into the city.  They will be coming with an R-2 recommendation.  The 

minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

F.   Recreation Board - LeJeune 

The board met, and Councilman LeJeune thanked Mr. Johnson and the Mayor for coming.  They 

had a good discussion on putting in a regulation tennis court at the new recreation property. 

 

G.  Utility Board – Fry 

The January 30
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The February minutes will be in the next packet.  The next 

meeting will be March 27
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

No report. 

 

    B.  City Attorney’s Report 

There is a matter that needs to be discussed in Executive Session regarding the Lamar Advertising 

lawsuit sometime in the future. 

 

    C. Department Head Comments 

Tonja Young – Library Director – reported that on March 7
th

 there will be a teen writing workshop, 

and a workshop for smaller children. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported that spring sports have started, and the Daphne 

High School Girls Softball Tournament will be Saturday. The McGill Toolen Soccer Tournament is 

March 17
th

, and the first of the Sunset Series will be at Bayfront Park Sunday from 5:00 p.m. – 6:30 

p.m., and the Easter Egg Hunt is March 23
rd

 at Lott Park. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported that the Baldwin County Homebuilders 

wrapped up their show, and it was a success, and they will be back next year.  Their new website is 

almost complete, and March 19
th

 is the Baldwin Pops, and April 22 and 23 the Mobile Bottle 

Collectors will be at the Civic Center. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director - reported a road closing on Saturday March 9
th

 at 

Marekesh and Ridgewood. 

 

Vickie Hinman – Human Resources Director – reported that they will be holding the Employee 

Service Awards on Wednesday, March 13
th

 at 11:30 a.m., and invited council to attend. 

 

Adrienne Jones – Planning Director – reported the UNA training session will be March 8
th

 and 9
th

. 

 

7



MARCH  4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

7.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Business Owner in Daphne – spoke regarding the modification of the Land 

Use Ordinance with Low Impact Development.  He said it is Agenda 21 driven.  He urged council 

to vote against it, and to look at existing drainage. 

 

Mr. Bill Moore 171 Lakeview Loop – spoke regarding support for the amendment to the Animal 

Control Ordinance. 

 

Mr. Douglas Dugat – Sehoy Subdivision – spoke regarding the city’s webpage not working.  He 

said the council e-mail was not working.  He also spoke regarding having public participation at 

every meeting. 

 

Ms. Kayla Warner -  1315 Warren Drive – spoke regarding the Lupus Walk being held March 16
th

 

and invited the public and council to come out an join in the walk. 

 

Mr. R.J. Lemcool – 128 Wild Oak Drive – spoke in support of the amendment to the Animal 

Control ordinance. 

 

Mr. Scott Hunter – Sunset Villas – made comments supporting Mr. Joe Davis as councilman for 

the city. 

 

 

 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)  Declaring Certain Property Surplus / 22 60” Round Tables. . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-13 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Resolutions 2013-13.  Seconded 

by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR               NAY    NONE OPPOSED                 MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Resolution 2013-13.  Seconded by Councilman 

Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR               NAY    NONE OPPOSED                 MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

8



MARCH  4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

 

ORDINANCES 

 

       2
ND

  READ  

a.)  Revisions to Zoning Map . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-11 

 

b.)  Amend Land Use & Development Ordinance / Appendix O, Impact  

      Development & Green Infrastructure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-12 

 

 

        1
ST

 READ  

c.)   Amend Ordinance 2010-56 Concerning Animal Control /  

       Schedule of Fines . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-13 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to waive the reading of Ordinances 2013-11, 2013-12.  Seconded 

by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adopt Ordinance 2013-11.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED     

 

 

ORDINANCE 2013-12 FAILS FOR LACK OF A MOTION 
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2013-13.  Seconded 

by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Conaway  Aye     LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye     Davis   Aye 

Lake   Aye     Scott   Aye 

Fry   Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

9



MARCH  4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-13.  Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 
 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED         MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2013-13.  Seconded by Councilman Fry.   

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED         MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

 

   9.  COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Councilman Rudicell said that they are in the beginning phase of organizing the Memorial Day 

Celebration, and if anyone has any ideas to please contact the Mayor’s assistant Jane Ellis.  They are 

looking forward to making it a good recognition ceremony for the ones lost this year. 

 

Councilman Lake said that he is going to research Agenda 21 because he has never heard of it before.   

 

Councilman Fry said that the e-mail does not work either together or on an individual basis.  He 

congratulated Mr. Davis, and welcomed him to the council. 

 

Councilman LeJeune said that the Beautification Committee meeting is Wednesday March 6
th

 at 

Public Works. 

 

Councilman Davis said that he is honored and humbled for the opportunity to serve, and make the city 

better that it is.  He has been here six (6) years, and has fallen in love with Daphne.  He recognizes it is 

we and not me, and he will consider not only his district, but also the we part of it in his decisions. 

 

Council President Scott congratulated Mr. Davis on being appointed to represent District 7, and said 

that he has some big shoes to fill, the Mayor.  He said he was shocked that there was not a motion to 

amend the Land Use Ordinance which came with a favorable recommendation from the Planning 

Commission. The ordinance is voluntary there was nothing mandatory in it.  Mrs. Campbell will have to 

come and give them a lesson on the stresses the city is being put under by the Alabama Department of 

Environmental Management, and by the EPA itself, and the city’s responsibility of monitoring the bay 

for certain turbidity and other things.  This ordinance is a result of a grant by the MNEP.  He wants to 

bring it back up at another meeting, meanwhile, they will educate themselves regarding the ordinance. 

 

Mayor Haygood welcomed Councilman Davis, and said he will do a wonderful job.  He had the 

opportunity to attend events with the youth of the area, and as Mr. Scott mentioned the IB Program and 

the Home Stretch breakfast they attended, and they had some standouts in that group.  There were some 

21 seniors in the class, and he was very impressed with their ability to interact with a room full of adults,  

 

10



MARCH  4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

and their education aspirations as well.  This past Saturday was the S.E.E.D.S. 5K and 1 Mile Fun Run 

here at City Hall, and there were over 1,500 people signed up, and it was a great event.  He 

complimented Mrs. D’Olievera, in particular, for putting on that event.  There is a couple of Boy Scouts 

in the audience, and he thanked them for coming.  He also thanked Kayla for speaking in front of the 

group tonight.  He asked citizens if they see youth doing something right to let them know about it, and 

to continue to stay involved. 
 

 

 

 

10.  ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

    AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED 

AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,          

 

                                                     
 

____________________________                                 

Rebecca A. Hayes,        

City Clerk                                 

         

      Certification of Presiding Officer:   
 

 

      ______________________________     

        Ron Scott, 

      Council President                    
 

11



MARCH 5, 2013 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:00 P.M. 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

  

2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION 

Councilman Lake gave the invocation. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; 

Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis, III. 

 

Also present:   Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, Interim City Clerk Jay Ross, Attorney; Richard Johnson, 

Public Works Director; Rick Whitehead, IT; Michele Hanson, HR Admin Tech; Willie Robison, BZA; Larry 

Cooke, BZA. 

 

 

3. CITY CLERK INTERVIEWS 
 

Council interviewed as follows: 

 

6:00 P.M. REBECCA A. HAYES 

6:20 P.M. CANDACE ANTINARELLA 

7:40 P.M. WAYNE DYESS 

8:00 P.M. NATALIE KENT 

8:20 P.M. BRUCE STONE 

8:40 P.M. BRIAN UNDERWOOD 

 

 

After interviews concluded council discussed the pay range for the selected candidate.  The 

candidates were given a list of the Grade 26 salary range with the 20 steps, and they chose the salary 

they would like to receive.  Council discussed offering the pay that the candidate circled within the 

scale up to Step 18.  If the person chosen declines the salary then the job will be offered to the 

candidate that comes in second. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to offer up to a maximum of Grade 26 Step 18 on the city’s 

current pay scale, and potentially less depending on who the ultimate candidate is that council 

selects, and will accept the job. Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED         MOTION CARRIED 

 

Council President Scott disclosed to the candidates that the highest salary for the position of City 

Clerk is Grade 26 Step 18. The candidate selected will be offered the job pending passing a 

background check and drug test as city policy states on any new hire, which would not apply to Mrs. 

Hayes since she is already an employee, and offered the salary the person selected, and if the person 

selected decided they were not happy with the salary then council would go to the person that came 

in second. 

12



MARCH 5, 2013 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:00 P.M. 

2 

 

 

VOTE FOR CITY CLERK POSITION 

ROUND  1 
 

                  

                NAME                                                     VOTES                                          TOTAL 

 

Antinarella, Candace 

 

LeJeune, Rudicell, Conaway 

 

3 

 

Dyess, Wayne 

 

Davis, Fry, Scott 

 

3 

 

Hayes, Rebecca  

 

Davis, LeJeune, Fry, Lake, Conaway, Scott 

 

6 

 

Kent, Natalie 

 

Lake 

 

1 

 

Stone, Bruce 

 

 

 

0 

 

Underwood, Brian 

 

Rudicell 

 

1 

 

 
TIE BREAKER VOTE BETWEEN CANDACE ANTINARELLA AND WAYNE DYESS     

 

 

 

VOTE FOR CITY CLERK POSITION 

ROUND  2 
 

                                                                   

             NAME                                                          VOTES                                          TOTAL 

 

Antinarella, Candace 

 

Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, LeJeune 

 

4 

 

Dyess, Wayne 

 

Fry, Davis, Scott 

 

3 

  

Mrs. Candace Antinarella will be a candidate with Mrs. Rebecca Hayes for the next round of votes. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13



MARCH 5, 2013 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:00 P.M. 

3 

 

 

VOTE FOR CITY CLERK POSITION 

ROUND  3 
 

 

 

                NAME                                        VOTES                                                          TOTAL 

 

Antinarella, Candace 

 

Rudicell 

 

1 

 

Hayes, Rebecca 

 

Davis, LeJeune, Fry, Lake, Conaway, Scott 

 

3 

 

 

Mrs. Rebecca Hayes is the new City Clerk for the City of Daphne. 

 

 

4. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilwoman Conaway thanked all the applicants, and congratulated Mrs. Hayes on her appointment. 

 

Councilman Rudicell congratulated Mrs. Hayes on her appointment. 

 

Councilman Lake thanked all the candidates, and said there were 68 applicants, and they were the top of 

the cut.  He asked the candidates to stay involved and look to the city for options.  He congratulated Mrs. 

Hayes, and said he was happy for her. 

 

Councilman Fry thanked the candidates for coming out, and that they were a great group of people.  He 

congratulated Mrs. Hayes on her appointment, and said that they expected her to earn it that going to an 

appointed position is a little bit different, and they are looking forward to working with her in the position 

of City Clerk, and he wished her the best. 

 

Councilman LeJeune thanked the candidates and congratulated Mrs. Hayes on her appointment. 

 

Councilman Davis thanked the candidates and appreciated their interest in the city.  The way the 

candidates presented themselves during the interviews spoke highly of them.   He said what else can he 

say but thank you Mrs. Hayes very much.  

 

Council President Scott congratulated Mrs. Hayes, and said that they have had a close working 

relationship for the last eight (8) plus years, and has always found her to be extremely reliable and he 

knows in her new capacity, once they get her some help, they will be in really good shape. 

 

Mayor Haygood congratulated Mrs. Hayes, and thanked all the candidates who spent their time here 

tonight, and they did a wonderful job.  He said that Council had certainly made a good decision, and he 

14



MARCH 5, 2013 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:00 P.M. 

4 

 

 

looks forward to working with Mrs. Hayes in her new capacity, and as Mr. Scott alluded to they will have 

an opening they will be advertising soon. 
 

 

5. ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

Seconded by Councilman . 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED                MOTION CARRIED 
 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,    

                                                           

      
______________________________                                                            

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk                                             

                        

        Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

        _________________________________     

             Ron Scott, Council President 

15



MARCH 11, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune.  

 

ABSENT:  John Lake; Robin LeJeune. 

 

Also present: Mayor Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Scott Hetrick, Attorney; Richard 

Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Director of Community Development; Ashley 

Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Joe Lemoine, Planning Commission; Douglas Dugat, 

Recreation Board; Roberta Swann, Mobile National Estuary Programs;  

 

Absent:  Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

1. LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE / ORDINANCE 2013-12 / ASHLEY 

CAMPBELL; ADRIENNE JONES; RICHARD JOHNSON; ROBERTA SWANN: 

Mr. Johnson  reported that he, Ashley Campbell and Adrienne Jones attended a Webinar this past 

week at South Alabama, and it was put on by the Society of Civil Engineers, and it was not ideals or 

methodology in Low Impact Development (LID), but about the proper way to go about bringing 

these methodologies into ordinances, cities and counties and so forth.  The first thing they said was 

you have to educate, educate, outreach, educate, explain, make it clear, make it understandable, 

educate, outreach…you get the picture.  He thinks in the process they failed the city council by 

knowing they knew what it was all about, and making the assumption that council was comfortable 

with what it was all about, and that was a failure on their part.  First of all what is this addendum or 

appendix to be added to the Land Use Ordinance,  it is simply a development tool to be added to the 

tool box, an additional tool in the tool box that a developer can choose to use. It is really that simple, 

but he does want to reiterate that since this, is in effect, an ordinance, and it becomes law of the land 

in what they are asking council to consider he revisited what the purpose of the ordinance is.  The 

purpose of this section is to provide a guide for development wherein the ecological impact to the 

environment are minimized through the appropriate design, landscaping, erosion control, stormwater 

management and proper planning.  The intent of the City of Daphne is to protect valuable natural 

resources, the natural environment and the quality of life for all its citizens.  In order to preserve the 

integrity, the stability and the value of the land the city encourages, and that word is very important 

in this ordinance, encourages the use of innovative LEED-certified, which stands for Leadership in 

Energy and Environment Design, and/or other “green” practices in development design.  Where such 

methods/practices are proposed for a development said practices shall be designed in accordance 

with Appendix O. So what this is saying is when a developer comes to the city and wants to 

incorporate low impact development methodologies they have given a referencing guideline for what 

is allowed or what is the specifications of those methodologies.  To understand, the most important 

thing is that businesses are already doing these methodologies, but they have no way to evaluate or 

compare them to a standard or a specification.  For example, let’s go to Appendix O, which is 

referred to, the first item listed is bioretention.  The new Popeye’s restaurant is using Bioretention in 

its design, now the city didn’t have a standard which to judge it from so they had to do research, look 

at it to make sure it was reasonable.  2.) Rainwater Harvesting – there is a brand new office building  

16



MARCH 11, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

right here over on Trione Street that has a cistern under the court yard, and are using it to water the 

flower beds there. They have no methodology in which to evaluate to judge whether it meets the 

standard.  3.)  Constructed Stormwater wetlands - the new Fire Stone Tire Center which will be in 

the location of the old Kia dealership is going to build constructed wetlands to not only collect, but 

to treat their stormwater runoff.  6.) Level Spreaders – the Eastern Shore Neurology Center which is 

a new doctor’s office right there on Yancey Branch used this technology to solve a drainage problem 

they were dealing with, and by maximizing native plants and minimizing sod.  They have gone 

through a program at May Day Park to plant native plants to reduce the landscape requirements and 

maintenance, as well as, part of the wetland restoration at Bayfront they have planted native plants 

back there with the goal of not having to touch that area, and let it do its thing.  4.) Permeable and 

Porous pavement – They applied that technology at May Day Park in the parking lot.  8.)  Swales 

and Dry Swales – The new adoration Chapel at Christ the King managed their stormwater runoff by 

a dry swale system.  So, basically, what they are asking for or presenting to council is that  the 

market is already out there, corporations and businesses have already adopted LEED and LID 

technologies and methodologies. The city needs to have a mechanism in which to allow those, 

because if they look at the current ordinance, Popeye’s proposal really does not meet the city’s 

ordinance, but the ordinance does not address bioretention, it does not make accommodations for it.  

So as opposed to saying that they are going to set this new set of standards and requirements, yes 

they are, but it is to accommodate what the market is already saying that they want.  Probably the 

only methodology that he does not think they will ever see is a green roof, because, frankly, the 

rainfall in Baldwin County, and the climate that is here a green roof would probably not work, but 

they put it in the ordinance in case somebody shows up and wants to have one, then they will have 

the specifications.  The key thing here is that there is no hidden agenda, it is putting a tool in the tool 

box.  It is not compulsory, meaning that they don’t require a developer to do this, it is only if a 

developer proposed to do it then they have a set of specifications.  Now he knows, and he hates to 

even address this, because some folks have brought up that the state has passed laws saying that the 

city can’t pass local laws that violate or address a UN paper that is out there. Understand, when you 

go to Appendix O the first four items refer back to a document that is produced by the State of 

Alabama.  They are only replicating or referring back to a state designed document for Low Impact 

Development.  So if they are referring back to a state designed standard, and the state says there is a 

law that says they can’t then that is between the state and themselves. That is a document that the 

state has developed, and it is called the Low Impact Development Guide Book, and they just 

referenced it as part of the tools in the tool box. 

 

Council President Scott said that there is a state document that states you cannot adopt any Agenda 

21 item that Mr. Johnson referred to as a UN document.  It says without due process, so in their 

words the state law says that you cannot take something without due process.  It is not 

countermounting its own regulations.  He said he hopes Mr. Johnson will tell council how they got 

to this point, and why they are recommending this as part of the watershed, the Thompson 

agreement, D’Olive, as well as, projects where they are required to do certain things.  

 

Mr. Johnson said understand, the City of Daphne maintains a MS4 Classification Permit for all the 

ultimate discharges to the streams and to the bays, and part of the maintenance of that permit is that 

that permit gives them credits for adding to the city’s Land Use Ordinance that allows for alternative  

 

17



MARCH 11, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

3 

 

methodologies to handle, process and treat stormwater runoff.  One of the best things about 

everything described in Appendix O, understand, traditional designs is – we deal with stormwater at  

the end of the pipe, when it is flowing out of the developed site, well LID technology starts treating 

that water at the source from the rooftop or in the yard or lawn or parking lot to bioretention, swales 

and things of that nature, as opposed to waiting till it gets to the end of the pipe and trying to figure a 

good solution for the problem.  So it is just a set of tools in that tool box.  The city stated in the MS4 

permit that the city would bring this and make an attempt to incorporate it into the city’s 

development ordinance, and also the city received a grant to  cover the cost of this process to get to 

the point where they are, and of course, it is a reimbursable grant.  If the council chooses not to enact 

this ordinance the city does not get the $20,000 reimbursed back to the city.  So it would be a 

$20,000 decision not to proceed.  He knows it is difficult when a previous council sets a course of 

action and approves them to go out for a grant to do something, and now there is a new council and 

maybe a different mindset or decision process, but he thinks, in full disclosure, this council needs to 

understand there is a financial consequence, and they have spent the money, now they would get 

reimbursed for it, but that is a consideration too.  There is nothing being forced on developers, and 

the reality of it is in the past year they have seen four to five developers come to them and say they 

want to use these methodologies.  They did not say the city would like you to use them, they came to 

them and said we want to use them is it allowable, and they have had to say yes, but they had to 

make it work.  That is as simple as it really is.  The ordinance states the purpose, and it says when a 

developed chooses to use such methodologies they have a reference manual or an appendix to go by 

for compliance so that when Ashley looks at it,  and he looks at it, it is yes you have met these 

methodologies, and these performance standards specified for these different things. 

 

Council President Scott asked Ms. Swann to bring everyone up to date on the handout she gave them 

earlier. 

 

Ms. Swann said about four years ago they were having significant sediment issues running into 

D’Olive Bay, and if you have seen D’Olive Bay you will see how much it has filled in over the 

years. They started out by looking at where all the sediment was coming from, and they asked the 

Geological Survey of Alabama to come in and do a sediment study.  They did that sediment study,  

and they identified where some of the major sources of sediment was coming from throughout the 

D’Olive Watershed.  They entered into a contract with Thompson Engineering to undertake a 

Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan.  That plan cost $125,000.  That is a watershed 

management unlike any that they had ever taken in the Mobile Bay area before, but because they felt 

that the issues in the D’Olive Watershed were so severe they really needed professional engineers to 

come in and tell them where the problems were, and how they could correct them.  Over the course 

of a year they engaged several different stake holder groups including the Department of 

Conservation and Natural Resources, the State Lands Division, the Department of Environmental 

Management, the Department of Transportation, AT&T, Baldwin County and the cities of Spanish 

Fort and Daphne, the Clean Water Partnership, the Geological Survey, the Lake Forest Improvement 

Committee, the Lake Forest Property Owners Association, Malbis Properties, MNEP, Natural 

Resources Conservation Services, Tonsmiere Properties, The Corp of Engineers, the Fish and 

Wildlife Services and Congressman Jo Bonner.  They brought all these different stake holders 

together to work through 1.) Identifying where the major problems were, 2.)  What did they need to  

 

18



MARCH 11, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

4 

 

do comprehensively to restore the D’Olive Watershed, which if you look at the map on the front 

page it encompasses quite a bit of the City of Daphne.  What they found was that is this area 

experiences on average about 5½ feet of hard rain in the Coastal Mobile Bay area, and it is a hard 

rain, it is not like Seattle where it is a mist, in this area it is big heavy rain drops which cause a lot of 

impact when they reach the ground.  Also, in the northeast quadrant of Mobile Bay, Daphne and the 

Spanish Fort area there is highly erodible soil, it is very sandy, very soft, and there is very high steep 

slopes.  So when you combine that with the erodible soils and the steep slopes you get erosion.  

When you start to convert the land from its natural habitat to develop areas, and you increase the 

amount of hard surfaces that don’t allow the water to seep through the ground, you have a lot of 

stormwater runoff and the volume and velocity of stormwater runoff increases every time you build 

a roof, lay a sidewalk, lay a driveway, any type of surface that would inhibit the waters ability to be 

naturally absorbed into the land. That is what has happened in the City of Daphne which has 

experienced wonderful growth, but there is a couple of consequences of that and that is the increased 

volume and velocity of stormwater, and that is what this plan addresses, how they can manage that. 

What she needs to tell them about is, this did not happen overnight, and it isn’t any one particular 

development that caused it, but it is a cumulative impact over time.  So when the D’Olive Watershed 

began developing, storm water runoff was not an issue, because you had enough natural surface to 

absorb that water, but now the watershed is 38% hard area or impervious surface so there is nowhere 

for that stormwater to go, and what it is doing is running through all of the creeks and tributaries, 

and causing massive erosion.  Not just in Daphne, but also in the City of Spanish Fort and sometimes 

what is happening in Spanish Fort is impacting the City of Daphne, and the city does not have any 

ability to do anything about it, because it is outside their jurisdiction boundary.  The Watershed 

Management Plan looked to recommend how the cities of Spanish For and Daphne and areas of 

Baldwin County that is involved, and how they could all work together as a Watershed Unit to 

manage the watershed as a whole, to manage the watershed from a top head waters of these streams 

and tributaries all the way down to the bay, and it is not just about restoring those creeks and 

streams.  It is about how you manage the land and the waterways into the future.  She thinks that is 

what this Low Impact Development issue is about.  You have to change the way you manage.  They 

are not saying no growth, they are saying you have to be cognizant of how that growth impacts the 

natural environment, and if the city wants to maintain that natural environment,  you just have tweak 

the way it is managed so that the city can have the best of both worlds.  The map Mr. Scott was  

referring to on Page 8…. 

 

Council President Scott said it was not the map he was referring to, it was the first steps, and the 

very first one of those is to adopt a set of management measures through local ordinances or 

resolutions and permitting that would ensure future development is conducted to minimize further 

alterations of the watershed hydrology, and this is the city’s attempt at fulfilling that firs part.  To 

implement everything that Thompson recommended is a multi-multi million dollar fix.  They will 

not be able to do it all at once, but they have made some baby steps and Joe’s Branch participation is 

one of which they started, and some of the worst pictures here are from Joe’s Branch.  That was a 

very much impaired stream, and they are making some major improvements.  They are step pooling. 

 

Ms. Swann said that was about a year ago.  Once they had the Watershed Management Plan in place 

they had an opportunity, there was such severe erosion in Joe’s Branch at Highway 31 where  

 

19



MARCH 11, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

5 

 

ALDOT was planning to do a roadway expansion project, they actually engaged Spanish Fort and 

ALDOT, and the City of Daphne offered Ashley’s services, Westminster Village, because they 

owned the property that the tributary ran through, and they asked ALDOT if they would consider 

taking the money that they would typically use to hard armor that area and use it to undertake a 

project that would actually do in-stream stormwater management while also adding back some 

ecological function to the tributary.  They applied for a grant through ADEM through their Section 

319 program.  It was a $650,000 grant.  ALDOT agreed to give them $200,000 as a match to that 

project.  They received the grant.  They received all the 319 money that ADEM had available in that 

year, because they had recognized the severity of the problem that they were struggling with down 

here.  They got the grant.  They implemented a regenerative step pool system which, basically, filled 

in what looked like a canyon, back to a normal creek bed profile.  They have put in temporary 

vegetation, and they will put the permanent vegetation in in the spring, and the project will be 

complete.  Part of that project was also restoring the wetlands downstream of that tributary.  That 

tributary is in itself depositing 100,000 tons of sediment into D’Olive Bay annually.  So correcting 

that one problem will reduce the amount of sediment flushing into D’Olive Bay significantly.  That 

will be a huge improvement for the protection of the City of Daphne’s environmental management.  

The Low Impact Development Ordinance that council is considering right now… the City of Daphne 

is in the lead in this Watershed Management Plan implementation, and the City of Spanish Fort is 

looking to what the City of Daphne is doing so that they can replicate what the city is doing.  So they 

have a coordinated plan as a way of crossing that  Geo-Political boundary.  Instead of crossing it 

they have both cities having the same ordinance, again so that they have the same management 

ongoing throughout the watershed.  They have to be creative.  It cost a lot of money.  They are trying 

to call as much attention to the D’Olive Watershed as possible, but she wants to reiterate restoration 

alone is not enough it is how they manage the land and water into the future, and that is what this is 

all about. 

 

Council President Scott asked Ms. Swann if she was familiar with the MS4 Permitting problem that 

the City of Mobile has had, and the fines and potential fines. 

 

Ms. Swann said it is a little different over there than it is here.  Over there it is to do with primarily 

trash.  Yes, the city has hired an engineering firm that ADEM feels has not been aggressive enough 

or assertive enough in undertaking actions to correct some of the stormwater challenges that the city 

faces, and it has got to a point where the citizens were so irate they went to ADEM, and ADEM did 

file suit on the City of Mobile for un-attainment of their stormwater permit requirements.  So MNEP 

are in the process of undertaking another Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan for the Three 

Mile Creek area to help them with that challenge. 

 

Councilman Rudicell asked what detrimental effect would it have on the City of Daphne if they 

adopted this ordinance and the City of Spanish Fort did not for some reason. 

 

Ms. Swann said it would not be good.  She will be honest, they are working very hard with Spanish 

Fort right now, and they have demonstrated ongoing commitment to the plan.  They are a little 

behind Daphne.  They are a younger city, but they have shown to her and Ashley their appreciation 

for the City of Daphne allowing Ashley to help with the situation in Spanish Fort.  They don’t have 

the same management capacity or historical experience of dealing with these issues, but they  

20



MARCH 11, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

6 

 

absolutely recognize that it is more challenging for them than it is for Daphne, because they are the 

ones with the eroding gulleys, eroding tributaries and they are very much hamstrung on how to deal  

with it so they are dependent on MNEP for applying for grants and bringing in whatever resources 

they can to get a handle on it.  There are some cases that they won’t ever be able to apply for grants.  

So this is a very, very serious problem in the City of Spanish Fort right now.  They have verbally 

committed to passing it. 

 

Councilman Rudicell said so in her opinion it would be a big impact if Daphne took the next step, 

and they did not, and it would impact the results.  That is what he was looking for. 

 

Ms. Swan said it would not impact all the results.  If you would look at the map two of the main 

tributaries run through Daphne so council’s actions would have a positive impact on Daphne.  

 

Council President Scott said Spanish Fort has also had some stabilization problems in addition to 

streams.  The bluffs up there that has been sliding down the hill, and they have has some houses in 

danger.  He does know that they are sensitive to this. 

 

Councilwoman Conaway asked if they had received the grant and spent the money. 

 

Mrs. Jones said that they have paid Jay’s Consultant Services each month.  They will request 

reimbursement once everything is finalized. 

 

Council President Scott said that council did approve applying for the grant. 

 

Councilwoman Conaway asked if there was a deadline in which to adopt the ordinance. 

 

Mrs. Jones said yes the deadline is at the end of the month.  They had from September to the end of 

March to have it done. 

 

Councilman Davis said in talking with citizens one of the things they had on their minds is if this is 

done at a site and then later this site is sold to someone else to what extent does it follow the land, 

and is that difficult to change, and he knows this is not something Mr. Johnson will have a specific 

answer for, but how would he help him answer a citizen. 

 

Mr. Johnson said the key thing, and understand, is that the city’s development ordinance really only 

applies to commercial sites and a new subdivision development.  It does not apply to an individual 

residential lot.  One of the things the city’s ordinance already requires is whether it is a soft 

engineering, they refer to LID as soft, or if it is hard.   There is a requirement in the current 

ordinance, there is a chain of ownership, meaning that these infrastructures that deal with stormwater 

have a perpetual chain of ownership and maintenance responsibility, and they do that, basically, with 

a contract that ties it to a person, entity, a number, or name, and then it is transferable, but they are 

kept in the loop if it goes from a POA or if Jubilee Square sells to this development group or 

whatever, that is how they do it.  The responsibility is the same whether it is a low impact 

development  methodology or good old fashioned retention pond. 

 

21



MARCH 11, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

7 

 

Councilwoman Conaway said these are only guidelines right? 

 

Mr. Johnson said basically, if a developer chooses to use low impact then these are the specifications 

for how they evaluate their proposal.  So it is a standard the city will go buy, and the developer will 

have them for their engineer to look at and say ok I have to meet these requirements if I use this type 

of bioretention.  It is that simple.  It is no different if you are going to build a traditional system, and 

it says you have to use concrete pipe from the road, well, you have to use concrete pipe from the 

road.  It is just standards that they are going to go by. 

 

Councilman Rudicell said they are trying to get businesses to come to Daphne and buy existing 

businesses that are on hard property.  Is this going to impact them now or in the next few years. 

 

Mr. Johnson said there is always opportunity to retrofit an existing developed site, but more than 

likely, this ordinance is pretty advantageous to redevelopment already, because, basically, it is 

interpreted that if you are not introducing any new and impervious surface you are grandfathered in 

as far as drainage goes, unless there is some pre-existing condition that has to be addressed.  In 

essence the city’s ordinance already kind of incentifies redeveloping the site as opposed to going to 

raw land, because if you have to meet the brand new, where if you  are redeveloping, like Publix is a 

good example, they did not introduce one more square foot of hard surface, they may have 

rearranged parking. 

 

Councilman Rudicell said that is what he was looking for.  He would like to keep as much green 

space as possible.  In the near future if this is implemented he asked Mr. Johnson if sees hiring any 

type of employee, and what type of employee would be hired to enforce this ordinance to make sure 

this mechanism works. 

 

Mr. Johnson said there is the trinity of environmental, engineering and Community Development, 

and they have the responsibility to review applications for each area of their expertise.  He may have 

to look at something new, but it is replacing something old.  So the review time is the same as 

always, going out to the site and everything else is going to be the same. It is just different 

methodology.  There is no more staff requested.  He looks at it like this:  If the goal is to have lunch, 

which is the analogy for the development, and if you go to the restaurant you can choose to get 

meatloaf and two vegetables or go eat the salad bar.  At the end of the day the salad bar can be your 

lunch or the meat and two vegetables.  It is just the developer choosing which route they are going to 

go.  That is all it is.  In the end the development is accomplished, but just two different routes to get 

there. 

 

Council President Scott gave this scenario:  The city had an opportunity to bring in a well- known 

retailer, and there was some questions about the particular piece of property that had two wetlands, 

an impaired watershed that was some excuses that turned that particular developer away.  If the city 

had something like this, and the developer knew that he had a challenging piece of property isn’t it 

likely the Planning Commission would look more favorably with something of this type.   

 

 

 

22



MARCH 11, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

8 

 

Mr. Johnson said especially where there is already an impaired wetlands and you are going to 

increase the wetlands, but you are doing it in an engineered way not only to handle the sotrmwater, 

but to also clean and treat it before its final discharge to the tributary down stream, absolutely.  One  

of the things they learned last week was one of the biggest issues is that retail developers only need 

the maximum parking place during the months between Thanksgiving and Christmas, and if there is 

some incentive that they could have where they could have a grassed overflow parking fort that time 

of the year, and that is less expensive to them, less curbing and pavement, maybe these would give 

incentives to introduce different methodologies to handle their overflow when they don’t need it, and 

they are mowing it and it is green space on their property.  So, yes there would be avenues.  To a lot 

of corporations today that is part of their marketing.  They want to advertise that they do things in a 

green way, because there is a customer base out there that will think more highly and pay more for 

their products because they are that way. 

 

Council President Scott said on that particular site plan, even though he does not think the city’s 

ordinance requires it, he thinks the Planning Commission put a lot of pressure on them to put in an 

oil separator based upon where they were going to make their deliveries, underground or something, 

and they were concerned about those trucks coming in and dropping oil, and then that oil going 

straight to the Lake Forest Lake and D’Olive Creek. 

 

Mr. Johnson said that is right they had to install a truck well in the back for deliveries, and that well 

is a recessed well, and so they did add a sump and oil and grit separator so that anything coming out 

of that sump was treated, and they were willing to do that.  They realized that was good business. 

 

Councilman Fry wanted to clarify where Mr. Johnson talked about a development like Jubilee not 

needing as many parking spaces.  He said there is nothing stopping a developer from coming in now 

and using more green space for parking as opposed to a pavement or whatever.  They are just not 

going to get this LEED-certification.  What is the issue on that? 

 

Mr. Johnson said technically there is, because right now they have a hard matrix in the Land Use 

ordinance that says if its this type of use, and its this type of business, and its this many square feet 

you have to have this many paved parking spaces. 

 

Councilman Fry said they have to be paved. 

 

Mr. Johnson said yes.  So that is what he is saying right now they are already experiencing.  He will 

never forget with the Tonsmiere development of the next phase of Summer Oaks.  His opening line 

in his review was “There is nothing typical about this development”, and it wasn’t, because they 

wanted to introduce low impact development, and the city has no accommodations for it.  Basically, 

the Planning Commission had to give them a waiver, because what they wanted to do was non-

traditional.  They were putting cisterns in the ground to collect the rain water, they were trying to 

percolate that rain water back into the ground.  They wanted to leave every tree up except exactly 

where they were going to put the residential units, and they wanted to minimize hard space, paving, 

and things of that nature, and the city does not have accommodations, it is old school development 

standards that says it shall be this, this, this and this.  So right now what they are doing is with these  

 

23



MARCH 11, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

9 

 

new developments that want to use these methodologies they are taking them one at a time and they 

do not really have a standard or a measure to judge them by.  

 

Councilman Fry said your recommendation is this is the best way to do that as opposed to some 

other change of the guidelines the city currently has. 

 

Mr. Johnson said again this set of regulations is not going to inspire any developer to do anything 

different than what they had already planed to do, but what it will do is accommodate those that 

desire this methodology, and give them a standard with which to judge their methodology. 

 

Council President Scott said this body will make this decision, but the city has a nine person 

Planning Commission, and this was vetted by the Planning Commission over a number of months, 

and it was a unanimous recommendation to the council to approve this ordinance.  He thinks the fact 

that there was not a motion shows the fact that they had not done a good job of at least educating 

folks as to what it was all about. 

 

Consensus of council was to put Ordinance 2013-12, Low Impact Development, on the March 18
th

 

agenda.                                                                                                                           

 

2. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Council considered the rules of procedure for council meetings section by section.  The 

recommended changes are as follows: 

 

Section II   

Strike the last sentence regarding agenda items 

 

Section V 

Move Department Heads Report before the Mayors Report  

Add City Clerk Report after City Attorney Report 

 

Section VI 

Add work session in the second line after items to be placed on the agenda must be turned in by  

5:00 p.m. on  the Wednesday before the council meeting and work session to the City Clerk… 

 

Section VIII 

Separate public participation rule from presentation rule 

 

Section XIV   

Add to the third sentence where it says: If the majority of the council shall vote in favor of the 

Motion for executive session the body shall upon certification of the city attorney that the reason 

for entering into executive session is legal according to the Open Meetings Act. 

 

Section XVII 

That the rules of the Council may be temporarily suspended by unanimous roll call vote of all 

members present. 

24



MARCH 11, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

10 

 

Section XXI 

The city attorney will check to see if the City Engineer is required under state code to attend council 

meetings.   

 

Department Heads will stay at the meeting when they have agenda items. 

 

Section XXIII 

Get opinion from the city attorney as to which Roberts Rules of Order to go by. 

 

Section XXV 

Delete in its entirety  (All motions that come from committees must still be seconded.) 

 

 

3. UPDATE ON HIGHWAY 64 AND COUNTY ROAD 13 ROUNDABOUT / RICHARD 

JOHNSON 

Mr. Johnson gave an update on this project using a power point presentation. He said the county is 

taking the lead on this project. 

 

 

4.  ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:21 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

Rebecca A. Hayes,                                                                     

City Clerk                                                                                                                                             

       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Ron Scott,     

      Council President     

25



 

PUBLIC HEARING  

FOR COUNCIL MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2013 

 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

 

 
REZONING AMEDNMENT:   LYNNE R. BROWN 

  

Location:     Northwest of the intersection of 6
th

 Street  

                                         and Dryer Avenue 

 

Present Zoning:   R-2, Medium Density Single Family  

                                         Residential District 

 

Requested Zoning:  R-6, (G), Garden or Patio Home District 

 

Recommendation:  Favorable 

 

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013- 

 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located  

Northwest of the intersection of 6
th

 Street and Dryer Avenue 

 
 WHEREAS, Lynne R. Brown, as the owner of certain real property located within the City of 

Daphne, Alabama, has requested that said property be rezoned from R-2, Medium Density Single Family 

Residential District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Home District; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is northwest of the intersection of 6
th
 Street and Dryer Avenue, and 

more particularly described as follows:  
 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE REZONED FROM R-2 TO R-6 (G): 

 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

LOTS 15 AND 16, BLOCK 3, DRYER SUBDIVISION, AS SHOWN BY PLAT 

THEREOF RECORDED IN THE PROBATE RECORDS, BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA IN MAP BOOK 1, PAGE 98 AND SLIDE 51-A, CITY OF DAPHNE, 

SECTION 41-TOWNSHIP, 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST. CONTAINING 0.33 

ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

 

 

WHEREAS, at the City of Daphne Planning Commission meeting on January 31, 2013 the 

Commission considered said request and set forth a favorable recommendation to the City Council of the 

City of Daphne that said property be rezoned; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed rezoning has been provided to the public as required by 

law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City Hall, a public hearing was 

held before the City Council on March 18, 2013; and, 

  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon consideration 

of the recommendation of the Planning Commission, and the public hearing, decided to amend the zoning 

request from R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Home 

District, and deemed that said application for rezoning of the above described real property is proper and in 

the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby rezoned from R-2, Medium Density Single Family 

Residential District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Home District, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning 

map be amended to reflect the said zoning change.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
44



 

 

ORDINANCE 2013                      REZONE: LYNNE R. BROWN                            PAGE   2 

 

 

 

 

SECTION III: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, in so far as 

they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION IV: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, or part 

thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the remainder of said 

Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and 

part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION V: EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the City 

Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by law. 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS              day of                         , 2013. 

 

 

 

         

       _____________________________ 

       Dane Haygood, 

       Mayor 

 

                                        

        

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk 

45



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

46



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
MARCH 11, 2013 

4:00 P.M. 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
The meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm.  Present were Chairperson Mrs. Conaway, Councilman Ron Scott, 
Councilman Joseph Davis, Finance Director Kim Briley, Deputy Finance Director Christine Ciancetta,  Senior 
Accountant Suzânne Henson and Accounting Technician Sue Moody. 
 
Also in attendance were Human Resource Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director Richard Johnson, 
Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, Recreation Director David McKelroy.. 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
Mr. Pfil Hunt discussed financing the 2003 and 2006 Bond Issues since they are just now approaching legal 
eligibility to refinance as of May 1, 2013. He noted it would take about six weeks to prepare the refinancing 
paperwork for the two bond issues.  Mr. Hunt noted that the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA)                          
recommendation is for there to be a 3% or greater present value savings threshold before refinancing should be 
considered.  Mr. Hunt stated that the refinancing option presented has a 4.231% savings and therefore the 
GFOA guidelines have been met.  Discussion was made concerning Hand Arendall being the City’s bond 
counsel.  Ms. Briley noted the refinancing information will come back before Council for a final decision. 
 
Councilman Scott discussed that a few years ago Mr. Hunt, Mrs. Briley, and the then current Mayor traveled to 
New York to discuss the City’s Bond rating.  Councilman Scott also noted the purpose of refinancing these two 
bonds was for overall savings and not new debt as had been the case in the previous bond issue. 

Motion by Mr. Scott for the Mayor & Finance Director to negotiate with Gardnyr Michael Capital 
for the refunding of the 2003 & 2006 Bond Issues and for Hand Arendall to serve as Bond 
Counsel. Seconded by Mr. Davis.  Motion carries. 

 
Mr. Kevin Spriggs commented he was pleased to hear that this bond refinancing would be for the purpose of  
savings and not issuing new debt. 
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
A. Update on Human Resources Department Activity 

Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 
Positions      Status 
Sales Manager      DOH:  2/21/2013 
City Clerk      Promotion:  3/6/2013  
PSW (2) (Grounds)     DOH:   2/28/2013  
GIS Technician                 Interviewing 
Fire Fighter      Physical agility test 
Police Officer      (98) Applications 

 
Mr. Scott asked why the Assistant City Clerk position was not listed.  Mrs. Hinman noted that opening 
just happened and the report had previously been sent.  Discussion continued on that Assistant City 
Clerk position is being reviewed by Archer for reclassification.  Mr. Scott commented that an Assistant 
City Clerk’s qualifications should be compatible to the City Clerk’s  in the  job description so that the 
assistant could obtain the same training and certification to become eligible to move into the City 
Clerk position should this position become open.  Mr. Scott discussed that consideration should be 
given when hiring assistant positions like the Assistant City Clerk or the Deputy Finance Director that 
they could one day move into the Director’s position.  Mrs. Hinman asked Mr. Scott for clarification on 
whether he wanted the Assistant City Clerk to be the same grade as the Deputy Finance Director 
(Grade 32)?  Mr. Scott stated that if the position is intended to be an admin position then it needs to 
be called Administrative Assistant (Grade 13) but if the position is called Assistant City Clerk (currently 
Grade 13) then the position needs to be reclassified to reflect the position and title. 

47



Finance Minutes.doc  2  

Loss Control Representative from AMIC came and he and the HR Benefits/Payroll Coordinator visited several of 
the City facilities where he checked for safety hazards.  Marjorie Bellue, Public Works employee, received the 
State Public Health certification required for spraying mosquitoes.  
Other Human Resources’ projects or meetings:   

 Conference calls/training with Kronos regarding new server and upgrades. 

 Reviewing Personnel Handbook  

 March 6, 2013 – Blue Cross Blue Shield Health Care Reform Lunch & Learn 

 March 13 – Service Awards Luncheon 

 March 20 – New Employee Orientation 

 New Online Training/Safety 

 Relay for Life – TV Raffle 

 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
A.  Financial Reports 

1.  Treasurer’s Report:  February 28, 2013 
The Treasurer’s Report totaling $ 20,593,622.45  was presented by Mrs. Conaway.  Mrs. Briley noted 
2006 Debt Service account balance of $105,352.55 will be transferred to Debt Service account for 
next month so the account can be closed out. 
 

Motion by Councilman Scott to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of February 28, 2013, 
in the amount of $  20,593,622.45.   Seconded by Councilman Davis.  Motion carried. 
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: January 31, 2013     
Mrs. Briley noted the taxes were increasing but at a slower pace.  Mrs. Briley stated that the Eastern 
Shore Park debt is now a General obligation.  Mr. Scott noted that the County was up in Sales Tax 
collections. Note: Revenue Software program was down for a week last month and the Sales Tax 
Collections graphs were updated to reflect the corrected collections:  $895,717.19. 
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections, January 31, 2013  
 Mrs. Briley noted that Lodging Tax Revenues collections for January 2013 were $47,548.01.  Mrs. 
Briley noted that this year’s collections were up $5,630.67 from last year’s collections for the same 
period. 
 

4. Available Capital Funds, February 28, 2013 
Ms. Briley reviewed the Available Capital Funds Report:  Total available $2,856,104 including all of 
Four Cent, Seven Cent and Capital Reserve.  Mr. Scott discussed that there are guidelines set for 
balances that a City should maintain in reserves and noted the City currently has approximately a four 
month reserve.    
 

5. Report: New Business Licenses – February 2013     
Mrs. Conaway reviewed the New Business Licenses Report showing 44 new businesses and 1 closed 
business. 

   
6.  Bills Paid Reports – February 2013 

Mrs. Conaway asked if anyone had any questions on the Bills Paid Report.  Mrs. Henson noted that 
anyone with questions could e-mail her later if needed. 
 

 B.   .  Appropriation Requests:  (Ordinance) 

 

Four Cent Gas Tax Fund  
1. Profit Drive Extension: Correction for previous appropriations - $86,291 

  Mrs. Briley explained that Ordinance 2012-31approved $106,445 for engineering for two (2) projects: 
Profit Drive $20,154 and $86,291 for Lake Forest Phase II.  When Ordinance 2012-66 was approved 
for the balance of engineering and construction cost for Profit Drive the full $106,445 was applied and 
therefore additional monies in the amount of $86,291 are need to be appropriated to this project.  Mrs. 

48



Finance Minutes.doc  3  

Briley noted monies are available in Four Cent Gas Tax Fund for this appropriation and noted that this 
additional appropriation was reflected in the Finance Statement Previously reviewed. 

 

Motion by  Councilman Scott to appropriate $86,291 for additional appropriation 
needed for Profit Drive Extension project.  Seconded by Councilman Davis.  Motion 
carried. 

 
Seven Cent Gas Tax Fund 
1. Road Striping – FY2013 - $9,903  

Mrs. Briley noted striping is an approved use of Seven Cent Gas Tax Fund and monies are available.  
Mr. Johnson Reviewed the list of roads where striping is needed. 

 

Motion by  Councilman Scott to appropriate $9,903 for Road Striping –FY2013.                                                       
Seconded by Councilman Davis.  Motion carried. 

      
 Lodging Tax Fund 
1. Pedestrian Bridge @ D’Olive Creek West: Total Project $94,659 / City’s Match-$ 24,132 

Mr. Johnson reviewed the D’Olive Creek Pedestrian Bridge project and noted that monies are 
available from a grant through ADECA.   Ms. Briley noted $10,500 Lodging Tax monies were 
previously appropriated through Ordinance 2011-53 for design and environmental permitting so only 
$6,500 would be needed for the balance of the engineering fees.  Mr. Johnson noted that the grant 
will pay $70,527 with the City’s match  being $24,132 ($6,500 eng + $17,632 const).    

 

Motion by Councilman Scott to Appropriate $24,132 for the Pedestrian Bridge @ 
D’Olive Creek West:  Total Project $94,659/City’s Match $24,132 and to authorize the 
Mayor to execute all agreements necessary for the project.   Seconded by Councilman 
Davis.  Motion carried. 

 
  C.  Bids: (Resolution) 

1.  2013-C-ADECA PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE @ D’OLIVE CREEK WEST 

Motion by Councilman Scott  to adopt a resolution to award the ADECA PEDESTRIAN 
BRIDGE @ D’OLIVE CREEK WEST bid to Asphalt Services, Inc.in the amount of 
$88,159.30 and to authorize the Mayor to execute all agreements necessary for the 
project.   Seconded by Councilman Davis.  Motion carried. 

 
Ms. Henson reviewed the Public Works bids listed below and noted they are all annual bids for items 
used in daily operations for the City.  Ms. Henson noted that department recommendations were 
included in the packet recommending the low bidder on all and the bids and on Asphalt Material 
recommendation was for the lowest bidder for the City’s purchasing history for items most purchased.   
            2.  2013-F-CONCRETE MATERIAL  
            3.  2013-G-ASPHALT 
            4.  2013-H-PLASTIC PIPE  
            5.  2013-I-ROCK MATERIAL 
            6.  2013-L-RECYCLED ROCK MATERIAL  

Motion by Councilman Scott to adopt a resolution to award the following bids per unit 
cost as bid: 
 2013-F-CONCRETE MATERIAL -   Ready Mix USA                       $86.00/CY/delivered                              
 2013-G-ASPHALT                           Mobile Asphalt       Unit Cost as Bid 
 2013-H-PLASTIC PIPE                   Vellano Bros Inc                     Unit Cost as Bid 
 2013-I-ROCK MATERIAL               Martin Marietta Mats Co          Unit Cost as Bid 
 2013-L-RECYCLED ROCK MATERIAL -  Asphalt Services Inc    Unit Cost as Bid 

 Seconded by Councilman Davis.  Motion carried. 
 

49



Finance Minutes.doc  4  

 
             
 
           7.  2013-J-OFFICE SUPPLIES 
 
Ms. Henson reviewed the office supply bid.  Ms. Henson noted that all departments in the City use 
this bid and the recommendation is to award to the low bidder Gulf Coast Office Products, Inc. 
(GCOP).  Ms. Henson noted that Office Depot also bid and they submitted their TCPN contract prices 
(TCPN  is one of the new cooperative purchasing contracts that the State has approved purchasing 
from in lieu of bidding).  Ms. Henson also noted that on the Office Depot bid the cost would only 
remain constant from April to April for specified items with Ink & Toner changing quarterly and paper 
fluctuating with market cost.  Ms. Henson noted that City departments have been pleased with 
GCOP’s service over the previous years they have served the City and noted that GCOP also gives a 
30% discount on non-bid items listed in their catalogue. 
 

 Motion by Councilman Scott  to adopt a resolution to award the OFFICE SUPPLY bid 
to Gulf Coast Office Products, Inc. (GCOP) for unit costs bid.  Seconded by 
Councilman Davis.  Motion carried. 

            
 
            8.  2013-K-PD/LIVESCAN FINGERPRINT SYSTEM  
 
Ms. Henson noted she had been working with Lt. Yelding on this bid for the Police Department.  Ms. 
Henson noted that there had been some operational and interface issues with some previous 
equipment of this type and Lt. Yelding was looking for a company that could provide the equipment 
with an interface that worked with the product.  The recommendation for award was for the low bidder, 
Afix Technologies, Inc. which provide their own interface software. (Monies are available for this 
purchase from the 2003 Corrections/Court Revenue Fund). 
 

 Motion by Councilman Scott  to adopt a resolution to award the PD/LIVESCAN 
FINGERPRINT SYSTEM to Afix Technologies, Inc. in the amount of  $31,500.  Seconded 
by Councilman Davis.  Motion carried. 

 
 

  D. .  Approve Mayor as Signatory (Ordinance) 
Ms. Briley noted this is just a housekeeping item.  Ms. Henson noted that since the previous ordinance stated 
the name of the Mayor for signatory authority and not just the position that a new Ordinance needed to be 
adopted to authorize the new Mayor, Dane Haygood,  as signatory. 
 

Motion by Councilman Scott  to recommend Council adopt an Ordinance to approve 
the Signatories for the City’s accounts. Seconded by Councilman Davis.                                   
Motion carried. 

 
F.  Discuss Increasing Daily Meal Allowance to match IRS rate (Motion) 

Ms. Henson noted that the current Daily Meal Allowance was set back in 2003 and the IRS rate has 
increased since then.  Ms. Briley noted that the City procedure for reimbursing mileage is based upon 
the mileage rate set by the IRS.  Councilman Scott recommended to set the Daily Allowance rate to 
follow the City’s regional IRS rate so the rate would automatically increase when the IRS rate 
increases.  
 

Motion by Councilman Scott to recommend Council to increase the Daily Meal Allowance 
(current rate of $51/day) and adjust annually with the IRS Regional Rate according to the 
location of training.   Seconded by Councilman Davis.  Motion carried. 

50



Finance Minutes.doc  5  

 
G. Intergovernmental Service Agreement with Baldwin County Commission: Round—   

               A-Bout at CR13 & 64   (Resolution)  
Mr. Johnson briefly reviewed the agreement presented between the County and the City for the 
ATRIP Project:  Round-A Bout at County Roads 13 & 64.  Mr. Johnson presented information showing 
the estimated total project cost is $1,411,677 with the City and County estimated match being 
$335,838.50/each.  Mr. Johnson noted that engineering cost share of $43,338.50 needs to be 
appropriated to move the project forward.  Mrs. Briley noted the funding for the $43,338.50 will come 
from 2012 Construction Fund. 

                             

Motion by Councilman Davis  to recommend Council adopt an ordinance to 
appropriate $43,338.50 from the 2012 Construction Fund for the City’s match for 
engineering for the Round-A-bout  at CR13 & CR64.  Seconded by Councilman Scott.  
Motion carried. 
  

V. OLD BUSINESS 
No old business was discussed. 

 
      
 

VI. ADJOURN   
The meeting adjourned at 4:55p.m.. 

 

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



 

 

 

P
ag

e1
 

Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 
Monday, February 4, 2013   5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall 
 

Committee 
Councilman Dane Haygood 

Councilman Randy Fry 
Councilman Pat Rudicell 

Richard Merchant, Building Official 
Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor 
Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director 

Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator 
 

Committee Minutes (Summary) 

 

Present:   John Lake, Frank Barnett, Dane Haygood, Randy Fry, Jane Ellis, Pat Rudicell, Richard 
Johnson, Margaret Thigpen, Rick Whitehead 
 

A.) Minutes from January Meeting: Motion made to approve minutes from January 
Meeting.  Approved.    
 

B.) Merchant Marine Flag:  Letter was presented with a request that the city place a 
Merchant Marine Flag at Patriots Park along with the other military flags.  Richard 
Johnson said he would get a quote and present to Beautification Committee.  Jane will 
notify Mr. Nelson, who made the request that we would move forward with this 
request. 
 

C.) Civic Center – Margaret presented her monthly revenue reports.  There was some 
discussion on the cooling issues at the civic center.  She also reported that she had 
offered someone the Sales Manager position.  

 
D.) Building Inspection – Reporting 157 permits for the month for a total of $2M with 

approximately $28,000 in fees for the city.  We have Popeye’s coming to Daphne and 
Horton Builders are doubling the size of their office complex.  

 
E.) Building Maintenance – Discussion on the Nicholson roof looking at both options.  It is a 

matter of determining what the building will be used for.  Several groups have been 
interested in using/leasing the facility.  Randy Fry suggested that we look at leasing 
options whether it is recreation department, civic center or third party.  
 

MOTION MADE to go to Finance with expenses as related to City Hall and Nicholson 
Center as a capital item.  

128



 

 

 

P
ag

e1
 

Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 
Monday, March 4, 2013   5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall 
 

Committee 
Councilman Joe Davis, Chair 

Councilman Randy Fry 
Councilman Pat Rudicell 

Richard Merchant, Building Official 
Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor 
Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director 

Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator 
 

Committee Minutes (Summary) 

 

Present:   Mayor Dane Haygood, Frank Barnett, Councilman Randy Fry, Jane Ellis, Councilman 
Pat Rudicell, Richard Johnson, Margaret Thigpen, Rick Whitehead, David McKelroy, Council 
President Ron Scott, Councilman Joe Davis, Richard Merchant, Ken Balme 
 

A.) Minutes from February Meeting: Randy Fry called the meeting to order. Councilman 
Joe Davis will be serving as Chair effective with the next meeting. Motion made to 
approve minutes from February Meeting.  Approved.    
 

B.) BRAG:  Annie Root had requested an opportunity to report on the activities and projects 
the group has been working on.  She was unable to attend. 
 

C.) DAPHNE MUSEUM:  Ken Balme requested again that the committee consider providing 
internet connection for the Museum for many reasons he discussed.  Having access to a 
data base and resources on site, visitors, volunteers, education tool with school 
children, etc.  Mayor Haygood mentioned that perhaps the Museum could piggyback to 
the city’s wireless connection.  He has asked the vendor to do a site survey and let him 
know if there would be charges if any.  If the services are donated or the money is 
available there will be no need to come back before the committee. 
Ken also asked that the Museum be given more exposure and visibility on the city’s 
website.  Jane will make the adjustments.  
 

D.) 2003 Ford Crown Vic – Pat Rudicell made a motion that the committee send to council 
for approval to surplus this vehicle.  
 

E.) Civic Center – Margaret presented her monthly revenue reports.  The revenues are up 
from last year for civic center and down a bit with Bayfront.  She made the point that as 
the economy has improved people are able to afford having their event at the civic 

129



 

 

 

P
ag

e2
 

center.  But Bayfront continues to be popular.  Bonnie Bryant, the new Sales Manager, 
comes to the City from Ashbury Hotel in Mobile and has a client base for special events 
as well as the business community utilizing the facilities during the week.  Margaret 
reported that the Home Builders Show went well and they were pleased.  Sunset Series 
at Bayfront for March and April, Ballroom Dance and the Council Retreat at Bayfront 
coming up this month.  
 
Speaking of Bayfront there was continued discussion of the gravel parking area and how 
it is not good for female guests with heels.  It would be nice to have it paved.  Ron Scott 
raised the question if there were any grants available for paving?  Richard Johnson 
noted that it would be expense to do and the payback would be slow.   David McKelroy 
commented that the paving not only helps with events at the facility but that area is 
also used heavily for kayaking, fishing, etc.   Perhaps money from the lodging tax could 
be used.  
 
Client Refund Requests -  Eula Davis requested a refund based on an illness in the family 
kept her from having  her event.  She was aware and did sign a contract that says the 
customer will forfeit deposits if event is canceled with 6 months prior to the event.  
After discussion of options, perhaps reviewing existing ordinance, etc. the Mayor 
recommended that we refund Ms. Davis half of her deposit of $380 which would be 
$190.  A motion was made that we refund Ms. Davis $190 – seconded – motion 
approved.  Another refund request was considered for Ms. Reynolds. She cancelled her 
event 2 days after the booked it due to family situation.  This event had not been on the 
books long enough to have the cancellation affect future bookings.  Motion was made 
for a full refund of $280.   

 
F.) Building Inspection – Reporting 83 permits for the month for a total of $3M with 

approximately $19,000 in fees for the city.   
 

G.) Building Maintenance – Continued discussion of placing the Marine Merchant Flag at 
Patriots Point.  The cost would be $1380 – time frame of 2-3 weeks.  Randy Fry did 
inquire about local vendors.  There is one in Mobile but we ordered all the others 
through this company and in order to keep it the same this was recommended.  Motion 
was made to approve the purchase and to move forward. 
 

H.) Pending Business -  Richard Johnson reported that a property map would be 
forthcoming.  Frank Barnett has been authorized to get hard quotes on the roof for 
Nicholson Center and will go out for bid on the part of city hall.   

 

130



Ordinance Committee 

 Wednesday, March 13, 2013 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 p.m. 
        

Councilman Randy Fry, Chairman       

Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Robin LeJeune 

Councilman Pat Rudicell 

 

  
I.         CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
  Chairman Fry called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Randy Fry, Chairman; Ron Scott. 

 

Absent:  Pat Rudicell; Robin LeJeune. 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; Chief Carpenter; Captain Scott 

Taylor; Carol Barrett, Kelly Urban, Lynn Cook. 

 

There was not a quorum present.   
 

The members present listened to citizens regarding the Animal Control ordinance and what 

constitutes a noisy animal, and the adult entertainment and tattoo moratorium and amendments to 

ordinance 2003-09 the Public Indecency ordinance. They heard from the Code Enforcement 

officer regarding amending the lighting ordinance. 

 

Kyle Navarro, representing Mr. Ross, will review the ordinances and make recommendations at 

the next meeting 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:30 p.m.    

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

131



 

132



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Bailey Yelding 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:00 PM on February 18, 2013 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6      
          

I. CALL TO ORDER 
  

 The February meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:00 PM   
 

 Present: 
 

 Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, Councilman John Lake, Councilman Ron Scott, Councilman 

Robin LeJeune (Chairman), Richard D. Johnson-Director Public Works, Sandra Cushway-

Administrative Assistant Public Works Scott Hutchinson-HMR Engineers, Dorothy Morrison-Daphne 

Beautification Committee, Randy Davis-Volkert, and Al Guarisco-Resident. 
 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report for January 2013 was reviewed.  No Comments. 

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Reports for January 2013 were reviewed – Councilman 

LeJeune questioned the non-routine Fire and Police totals.  Richard responded that they were 

not scheduled maintenance and that Mowing included a 4-Wheel Drive tractor that had to be 

rebuilt which cost $3,695. 

C. Public Participation – Selena Vaughn spoke about the benefits of an amphitheater at Village 

Pointe.  She showed plans and drawings of the proposed Amphitheater and has applied for 

grants to cover related engineering costs. She has several estimates ranging from $1.7 million 

to $4.8 million.  The plans include tiered grassy areas which would be contoured into the 

bluff.  No formal seating. Would be possible to use the bond from the Lodging Tax.  Ashley 

would need to be involved since it includes some wetlands.  Need to look at purchasing the 

Marino property.  Richard stated that there are two properties involved and that the Utilities 

Department has usage of one of them.  It would operate under the Civic Center.  Ms. Thigpen 

has the capabilities to offer and arrange events.  There was further discussion regarding the 

feasibility of development on the bluff, how many people it would need to accommodate, 

security and funding.  These items all need to be resolved before the committee can proceed 

with any further discussion.  

D. Correspondence – None  

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes from January 22, 2013 Meeting were reviewed and accepted as written. Motion by 

Councilman Scott to accept minutes.  Motion seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

B. Mosquito Report – no report submitted or reviewed. (not currently in spraying season) 

C. Street Sweeper Reports for January 2013 were reviewed.  

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. None  
  

V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. Public Works FY2013 Capital Equipment Needs/Requests to Present to Finance Committee. 

The automated garbage truck has been delivered and is in service.  Mowers are on order and 

expected to arrive within one month.  The committee reviewed the Public Works priorities for 

capital purchase.  MPO is requesting traffic studies and our current equipment is obsolete and 

not repairable.  Requesting a sweeper attachment.  A broom with a scoop bucket that will 

enable the sweeper to pick up road millings.  The engine was just replaced on unit 1005 which 

cost $12K.  The Finance Committee has already approved the Mechanical Maintenance 

service truck. 

133



 

VI. DAPHNE SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report for January 2013 was reviewed.   

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Tonnage Comparison) for January 2013 was reviewed.  

100 lbs. of glass was hauled off.  Did not have to pay tonnage or tipping fee.  Richard stated 

that Public Works would like to purchase a glass crusher which would enable the department 

to produce their own sand.  It would be a recyclable resource. 

C. Solid Waste New Customer Report for December 2012 was reviewed.  Ten new residential 

customers in the City this past month.  So far, 62 new residents this fiscal year with many 

more new homes currently under construction.   

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. No Committee meeting this month.  (Committee meetings will be held every other month) 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes for February 6, 2013 Meeting were reviewed.  Dorothy reported that she is still 

working with downtown businesses to get parking lots paved while the grant money is still 

available.  The city looked great over the holidays.  The Martin birdhouses are up and waiting 

for the Martins to arrive.  The Arbor Day Proclamation goes before the council tonight.  The 

Arbor Day free tree giveaway is tomorrow from 7:00 AM until 10:00 AM or until we run out 

of trees.  Councilman Scott questioned what the plan is for the location where all the Junipers 

were removed.  Richard reported that invasive plants created the need to remove the Junipers 

and that Selena is working with the Grounds Department to ensure that when the plantings are 

completed, that they match on each side of the I-10 exits. 

 

IX. ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. January 28, 2013 Meeting Minutes were reviewed.  The committee is getting involved in 

helping community development rework the tree ordinance.  Mr. Elliott Reiser has been 

nominated to join the Committee.   

 

X. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

A. HMR gave updates on the following city-wide projects: 

i. Sport Complex – near completion; grading and paving 

ii. Lake Forest Boulevards, Phase II – Traffic moving through construction areas too fast.  

Contractor needs to manage traffic flow. 

iii. Lake Forest Boulevards,  Phase III 

 

B. Volkert – no additional reports.  

 

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting for March 18, 2013 was announced 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 6:05 PM 

134



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

135



 
P

ag
e1

 

DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

1705 MAIN STREET         

DAPHNE, AL 

FEBRUARY 27, 2013    5:30 P.M. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:40 p.m.. 

 

Members Present:  Casey Zito; Ken Balme; Dorothy Morrison; Patricia Vanderpool; Doug 

Bailey; Ronald Nero. 

 

Absent: Dayna Oldham; Mary Beth Mantiply.  

 

Also Present: Rebecca Hayes, Recording Secretary; Councilman Rudicell; Karen Nady; Mayor 

Haygood. 

 

2.  APPROVE MINUTES / JANUARY 19, 2013 

 

MOTION BY Doug Bailey to approve the January 19, 2013 meeting mintues.  Seconded by 

Ronald Nero.  

 

 ALL IN FAVOR                  NONE OPPOSED    MOTION CARRIED 

 

3.  TREASURERS REPORT 

The bank balance a ending January, 2012 is $85,197.07 

4.  BEAUTIFICATION REPORT 

Dorothy reported that they will start planting on the curve in front of the hotels on North Main 

Street.  The next meeting is next Wednesday morning.  Ashley Campbell has a grant for Gator 

Alley, and they are waiting for her to get things together to proceed with planting. 

 

5.  OLD BUSINESS 

     a.)  Plaque 

Dorothy received a quote from Bay Images of $852 plus 9½% tax, and $100 for the rock. 

 

MOTION BY Doug Bailey to authorize Dorothy Morrison to order the plaque.  Any funds 

above and beyond the money in the old fountain account Downtown Redevelopment will 

fund.  Seconded by Ken Balme. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY   NONE OPPOSED             MOTION  CARRIED 

136



 
P

ag
e2

 

DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

1705 MAIN STREET         

DAPHNE, AL 

FEBRUARY 27, 2013    5:30 P.M. 

 

    b.)  Olde Towne Map 

Karen Nady, Olde Towne Daphne West, said the map will be ready Thursday or Friday.  The 

members discussed when to present the map to the council, and they agreed on March 18
th

 where 

they will present a signed copy to the Mayor. 

 

The members will decide later where to put the maps for distribution, and how many to keep in 

inventory. 

 

    c.)  Planters Downtown 

Some businesses have agreed to have the planters in front of their businesses.  Doug Bailey will 

contact the Boy Scouts to see if someone will do the planters as a project. 

 

    d.)  Mini-Grants 

The Authority has paid two (2) grants, Olde Towne Daphne West and Uncorked Wines. For the 

record the House of Beauty, Elizabeth Wright, has withdrawn her application, because the price 

kept going up, and she did not think she could afford to have it done.  It is the same for Larry 

Chason and DeCuba.  Doug mentioned that they may want to contact the folks paving 

Macedonia Baptist Church parking lot they may can give them a deal. 

 

   e.)  Website 

The website is under construction. 

 

6.  NEW BUSINESS 

    a.)  Christmas Committee 

Rebecca Hayes discussed with the members the newly formed Christmas Committee.  They met 

last week to discuss making the Christmas Parade a bigger event for the Olde Towne District.  

She mentioned to the committee that DRA would be very interested in getting involved since 

they have discussed in the past doing something to increase traffic downtown, and that they 

could help fund some of the cost.  Members will attend the next Christmas Committee meeting 

which is March 8
th

 at 9:00 in the Mayors conference room. 

 

    b.)  Ceiling of Lights 

Dorothy Morrison had a book of the different lights for the Christmas season.  She said the cost 

for the ceiling of lights to be in front of City Hall would be $10,000. 

 

137



 
P

ag
e3

 

DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

1705 MAIN STREET         

DAPHNE, AL 

FEBRUARY 27, 2013    5:30 P.M. 

 

 

 7.  NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting will be March 27
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Downtown Redevelopment Authority 

 

          

138



 

P
ag

e1
 

FEBRUARY 25, 2013 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

6:00 P.M.  

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order at 6:05 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT –Toni Fassbender; Dennis Kearney, III; John R. Cox; Doug Bailey; 

Pokey Miller. 

 

Absent Excused:  Dan Romanchuk; 

 

Absent Not Excused:  Angela Mayer 

 

Also present – Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, Recording Secretary; Joe Davis; Rob McElroy, 

Daphne Utilities; Lee Johnson, BCEDA; Kevin Jones, Algae Systems, LLC; Kenneth Kirkland, 

Algae Systems, LLC; Stephen Jones, Algae Systems, LLC;. 

 

 

2. APPROVE MINUTES / NOVEMBER 13, 2012 & JANUARY 28, 2013 

 

Motion by Dennis Kearney to approve the November 13, 2012 meeting minutes.  Seconded 

by Pokey Miller. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED         MOTION  CARRIED 

 

Motion by Dennis Kearney to approve the January 28, 2013 meeting minutes.  Seconded by 

John Cox. 

 

AYE   ALL IN FAVOR         NAY   NONE OPPOSED        MOTION CARRIED 

 

3.  OLD BUSINESS 

The members discussed tax abatements for Algae Systems, LLC. 

 

Motion by Dennis Kearny to abate the sales and use tax and property tax for Algae 

Systems, LLC.   Seconded by John Cox. 

 

AYE   Bailey, Cox, Kearney             ABSTAIN    Fassbender      MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

139



 

P
ag

e2
 

FEBRUARY 25, 2013 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

6:00 P.M.  

 

4.    TREASURERS REPORT 

 

Motion by Doug Bailey to accept the Treasurers Report in the amount of $255,371.08.  

Seconded by Dennis Kearney. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

5.   NEW BUSINESS 

      A.)  Letter of recommendation for Mr. Joe Davis for District 7 council seat 

 

Motion by Dennis Kearney to approve the letter of recommending Mr. Joe Davis for 

District 7 council seat.  Seconded by Doug Bailey.  

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

     B.)  Alabama Sales Tax Savings with Abatements 

Members discussed the information. 

 

     C.)  Project Keystone 

Toni discussed the letter she sent from the board to Lee Lawson in support of project Keystone. 

 

6.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      None 

 

6.   ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Dennis Kearney to adjourn.  Seconded by John Cox. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR  NONED OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING ADJOUNED AT 

 7:30 P.M. 
 

Approved: 

 

________________________ 

Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

159



RESOLUTION 2013 - 14 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
 

WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 

WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  
 

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
     

    

DEPT TAG/VEH#          DESCRIPTION                                                VIN VIN # / SERIAL # 

Patrol          4030 
 

 

2003 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W23X183804 
 

2003 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W23X183804 
  

1999 FORD TRUCK PU F SERIES 1FTRX17W2XNA97640 
 

 
 
 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2013. 
           
 

        

                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Dane Haygood, Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

160



RESOLUTION 2013-15 
  2013-C- ADECA PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE @ D’OLIVE CREEK WEST 

 
  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that ADECA PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE @ D’OLIVE 

CREEK WEST will exceed $50,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the ADECA PEDESTRIAN 

BRIDGE @ D’OLIVE CREEK WEST and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; 
and 
 
WHEREAS,  ADECA  grant monies are available for 80% of the construction cost for the 
Pedestrian Bridge @ D’Olive Creek West project with the City paying 100% of design, 
engineering, and permitting costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for ADECA PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE @ D’OLIVE CREEK 

WEST be awarded to Asphalt Services, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from 
Asphalt Services, Inc. in the amount of $88,159.30 as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 
2013-C-ADECA PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE @ D’OLIVE CREEK WEST with 80% of the 
construction cost ($70,528) to be reimbursed to the City from ADECA.   
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this         
day of                      , 2013. 
 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                      _________________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
                                                                            
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

161



RESOLUTION NO.  2013-16 

2013-F-CONCRETE MATERIAL 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the CONCRETE 
MATERIAL will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, No bids were received and therefore can be negotiated; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the negotiated bid for the CONCRETE 
MATERIAL and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the CONCRETE MATERIAL be 
awarded to Ready Mix USA, LLC. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the negotiated bid of Ready Mix USA, LLC for unit cost as follows:  
 
                                                  0 - 5 C.Y.    - $  86.00/C.Y. (Delivered) 

                                                  Over 5 C.Y.- $  86.00/C.Y. (Delivered) 

 
as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2013-F-CONCRETE MATERIAL. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS              day of                     _, 2013. 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                            
_____________________________ 

                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
        
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

162



RESOLUTION NO.  2013-17 

2013-G-ASPHALT 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code of Alabama to 

secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the ASPHALT will exceed this 

amount; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the ASPHALT and determined that the bid as 

presented is reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the ASPHALT be awarded to Mobile Asphalt 

Company LLC 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 

Mobile Asphalt Company LLC for unit cost as follows:  

Type Qty Amount 

327-Mix 1, furnished ton $52.00  

327-Mix 1, furnished & delivered ton $55.75  

327-Mix 2, furnished ton $52.00  

327-Mix 2, furnished & delivered ton $55.75  

414-Mix 1, furnished ton $52.00  

414-Mix 1, furnished & delivered ton $55.75  

414-Mix 2, furnished ton $52.00  

414-Mix 2, furnished & delivered ton $55.75  

416-Mix 1, furnished ton $55.00  

416-Mix 1, furnished & delivered ton $58.75  

416-Mix 2, furnished ton $55.00  

416-Mix 2, furnished & delivered ton $58.75  

424-A, furnished ton $55.00  

424-A, furnished & delivered ton $58.75  

424-B, furnished ton $52.00  

424-B, furnished & delivered ton $55.75  

424-C, furnished ton $52.00  

424-C, furnished & delivered ton $55.75  

Asphalt Cold Patch, 35 lb bag ea $15.00  

as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2013-G-ASPHALT. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS                day of                    _, 2013. 

 
      _____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk                                                                         

163



RESOLUTION NO.  2013-18 
2013-H-PLASTIC PIPE 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the PLASTIC PIPE will exceed this 
amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed  the bids for the PLASTIC PIPE and determined that the bid as 
presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the PLASTIC PIPE be awarded to Vellano Brothers, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE MAYOR 
AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of Vellano Brothers, Inc. 
for unit cost listed in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2013-H-PLASTIC PIPE. 
  

Size " / 
20ft Pipe 

  

Amount 

4" 
  

$0.44  

6" 
  

$2.73  

8" 
  

$3.65  

10" 
  

$4.82  

12" $4.93  

15" $6.13  

18" 
  

$7.69  

24" 
  

$13.40  

30" $19.09  

36" $25.73  

42" 
  

$33.60  

48" 
  

$43.46  

60" 
  

$75.76  

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 
THIS              day of                               , 2013 

   
_____________________________ 

                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
   
_________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

164



RESOLUTION NO.  2013-19 

2013-I-ROCK MATERIAL 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the ROCK 
MATERIAL will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the ROCK MATERIAL and 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the ROCK MATERIAL be awarded to 
Martin Marietta Aggregates. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of Martin Marietta Aggregates for unit cost (delivered) as follows:  
 
     Crushed Aggregate 825-A  29.25 
                                             Crushed Aggregate 825-B 28.85 
     #57 Limestone            29.85 
                                              #78 Pea Gravel          29.85 
     Rip Rap – Class I        41.75 
               Rip Rap – Class II       41.75 
 
      
as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2013-I-ROCK MATERIAL. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS                    day of _                    _, 2013. 
 

                                                                           
     

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
        
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk                                                               

165



RESOLUTION NO.  2013-20 

2013-J-OFFICE SUPPLIES 
 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the OFFICE 
SUPPLIES will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the OFFICE SUPPLIES and 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the OFFICE SUPPLIES be awarded to 
Gulf Coast office Products. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 
Gulf Coast office Products for unit cost as bid herein and made a part hereof for 
BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2013-J-OFFICE SUPPLIES. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS              day of                               , 2013 
         

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                  

_____________________________ 

                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 
 
 

166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



RESOLUTION NO.  2013-21 

2013-K-PD/LIVESCAN FINGERPRINT SYSTEM 
 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the 
PD/LIVESCAN FINGERPRINT SYSTEM will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the PD/LIVESCAN FINGERPRINT 
SYSTEM and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, Monies are available for the purchase of the PD Livescan Fingerprint 
System from the 2003 Corrections/Court Revenue Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the PD/LIVESCAN FINGERPRINT 
SYSTEM be awarded to Afix Technologies, Inc.; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 
Afix Technologies, Inc. in the amount of $31,500 as specified in BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2013-K-PD/LIVESCAN FINGERPRINT SYSTEM. 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS                     day of                                       ,2013. 
 

     
                                                                                                                                                                                        

_____________________________ 

                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
        

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 
 

177



RESOLUTION NO.  2013-22 

2013-L-RECYCLED ROCK MATERIAL 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the RECYCLED 
ROCK MATERIAL will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the RECYCLED ROCK MATERIAL 
and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the RECYCLED ROCK MATERIAL be 
awarded to Asphalt Services, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of Asphalt Services, Inc. for unit cost (delivered) as follows:  
 

A. CRUSHED CONCRETE AGGREGATE (CCA) 
 BASE MATERIAL Equivalent to 825-TYPE B  $20.75      PER TON 

B. CLASS 1 RC RIP RAP     $35.00      PER TON 
C. CLASS 2 RC RIP RAP     $35.00      PER TON  

 
 

D. CLASS 3 RC RIP RAP                DNE              PER TON 
E. CLASS 4 RC RIP RAP                DNE              PER TON 
F. CLASS 5 RC RIP RAP                           DNE              PER TON 

G. CRUSHED CONCRETE AGGREGATE (CCA) 
 BASE MATERIAL-Equivalent to 825-TYPE A             DNE              PER TON 

      
as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2013-L-RECYCLED ROCK 
MATERIAL. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS                       day of _                  _, 2013. 
 
 
     

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
        
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk                                                               

178



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-12 

 

 

Ordinance to Amend the City of Daphne  

Land Use and Development Ordinance 

Appendix O, Low Impact Development & Green Infrastructure  

 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at its regular meeting held on 

December 20, 2012, considered certain proposed amendments to the City of Daphne Land Use and 

Development Ordinance, Ordinance No. 2011-54, and any amendments to the same; and, 

 

WHEREAS, after such consideration the Planning Commission sent a favorable recommendation to 

the City Council of the City of Daphne for the approval of said amendments to the City of Daphne Land Use 

and Development Ordinance; and, 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed amendment has been provided to the public as required by 

law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City Hall, a public hearing was 

held before the City Council on February 18, 2013; and, 

                                  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

recommendation of the Planning Commission, deemed that said amendments to the City of Daphne Land Use 

and Development Ordinance are proper and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens 

of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

SECTION I.  AMENDMENT 

 

 a.  Table of Contents to said Ordinance shall be amended to include Appendix O: Low Impact 

Development/Green Infrastructure (LID/GI) Project Application; 

 

 b.  Article 18-1(A)  shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows: 

 

18-1 GENERAL       

A.    Purpose: 

The purpose of this section is to provide a guide for development wherein the ecological 

impacts to the environment are minimized through appropriate design, landscaping, erosion 

control, stormwater management, and proper planning.  The intent of the City of Daphne is to 

protect valuable natural resources, the natural environment and the quality of life for all its 

citizens.  In order to preserve the integrity, stability and the value of land, the City encourages 

the use of innovative, LEED-certified (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) 

and/or other “green” practices in development design.  Where such methods/practices are 

proposed for a development said practices shall be designed in accordance with Appendix O, 

The Low Impact Development  and Green Infrastructure Project application and certified by a 

credentialed professional in his/her design field.   

 

  c.  Appendix O: Low Impact Development/Green Infrastructure (LID/GI) Project Application as 

attached to this Ordinance, shall be added to the Land Use Ordinance in its entirety. 

 

179



 

ORDINANCE 2013-12    LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT & GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE      PAGE   3 

 

All other sections, articles, and/or content of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development 

Ordinance shall remain the same and shall be unchanged by this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, in so far as 

they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, or part 

thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the remainder of said 

Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and 

part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the City 

Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by law.  

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS ____  day of ________________, 2013. 

 

 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 

  

 

___________________________________                             

DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR                       

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________                                                                           

REBECCA A. HAYES, 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-14 

 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located  

Northwest of the intersection of 6
th

 Street and Dryer Avenue 

 
 WHEREAS, Lynne R. Brown, as the owner of certain real property located within the City of 

Daphne, Alabama, has requested that said property be rezoned from R-2, Medium Density Single Family 

Residential District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Home District; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is northwest of the intersection of 6
th
 Street and Dryer Avenue, and 

more particularly described as follows:  
 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE REZONED FROM R-2 TO R-6 (G): 

 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

LOTS 15 AND 16, BLOCK 3, DRYER SUBDIVISION, AS SHOWN BY PLAT 

THEREOF RECORDED IN THE PROBATE RECORDS, BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA IN MAP BOOK 1, PAGE 98 AND SLIDE 51-A, CITY OF DAPHNE, 

SECTION 41-TOWNSHIP, 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST. CONTAINING 0.33 

ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

 

 

WHEREAS, at the City of Daphne Planning Commission meeting on January 31, 2013 the 

Commission considered said request and set forth a favorable recommendation to the City Council of the 

City of Daphne that said property be rezoned; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed rezoning has been provided to the public as required by 

law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City Hall, a public hearing was 

held before the City Council on March 18, 2013; and, 

  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon consideration 

of the recommendation of the Planning Commission, and the public hearing, decided to amend the zoning 

request from R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Home 

District, and deemed that said application for rezoning of the above described real property is proper and in 

the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby rezoned from R-2, Medium Density Single Family 

Residential District to R-6 (G), Garden or Patio Home District, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning 

map be amended to reflect the said zoning change.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
201



 

 

ORDINANCE 2013-14                      REZONE: LYNNE R. BROWN                            PAGE   2 

 

 

 

 

SECTION III: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, in so far as 

they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION IV: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, or part 

thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the remainder of said 

Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and 

part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION V: EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the City 

Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by law. 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS              day of                         , 2013. 

 

 

 

         

       _____________________________ 

       Dane Haygood, 

       Mayor 

 

                                        

        

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

202



203



204



205



ORDINANCE 2013-15  
 

Profit Drive Extension – Additional Appropriation 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain Four Cent Gas Tax appropriations are required 
and should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Four Cent Gas Tax Funds may be used for resurfacing, restoration, 
and construction of roads within a municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Profit Drive Extension project meets this definition; and  
 
WHEREAS, the total project cost for the Profit Drive Extension is $271,845 and 
Ordinance 2012-31 appropriated $ 20,154 for engineering and Ordinance 2012-66 
appropriated $165,400;  and  
 
WHEREAS, an additional amount of $86,291 should have been appropriated in 
Ordinance 2012-66 and now needs to be appropriated to fund the complete project 
cost. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that an appropriation in the amount of $86,291 is hereby approved from 
the Four Cent Gas Tax Fund and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget for 
the Profit Drive Extension project.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________  , 2013 
 

 
         

                                                                       
 

 
     

_________________________________ 

                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

206



ORDINANCE 2013-16 

Fiscal 2013 Road Striping & Marking Projects 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget on 
October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of 
the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received a cost estimate from Baldwin County for striping and marking 
of several roads and highways located within the City of Daphne; and 
 
WHEREAS, road striping and marking are essential for the maintenance of the following (+-9.12 
miles): 
 

Schedule of Road Striping 

Road Name Begin  End Total Length (ft) Multilane (y/n) 

Maxwell Ave Captain O’Neal Main St 2975 No 

Deer Ave End Main St 3350 No 

Captain O’Neal Deer Ave College Ave 3860 No 

Old County Rd College Ave Santa Rosa Ave 5210 No 

Santa Rosa Ave Old County Rd US Hwy 98 1330 Yes 

Lea Ave Old County Rd Main St 1780 No 

Magnolia Ave Old County Rd Main St 1790 No 

Belrose Ave End Main St 3040 No 

Van Ave Main St US Hwy 98 1400 Yes 

Johnson Rd Main St US Hwy 98 1370 No 

Pollard Rd CR64 Park Dr 9610 No 

Sehoy Entrance CR13 Claiborne Cir 910 Yes (at entrance) 

North Main St US Hwy 98 Jubilee Blvd 9765 Yes 

Old Spanish Trail US Hwy 98 Whispering Pines 1710 No 

Total Roadway Length (ft): 48,100 9.12 miles 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
that an appropriation in the amount of $ 9,903 from the Seven Cent Gas Tax Fund is hereby 
approved for the striping and marking of the above listed road projects.  Furthermore, if funds 
are remaining after the above listed roads and highways are striped and marked, additional 
areas within the City of Daphne may be completed.  
 
The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all agreements required by the Baldwin 
County Commission to execute the work described herein. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this    day of    , 2013. 
 
              
       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
       
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

207



ORDINANCE 2013-17  
ADECA PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE @ D’OLIVE CREEK WEST 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 

WHEREAS, Lodging Tax funds may be used for the purchase, development, and 
maintenance of waterfront property; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that a pedestrian bridge is needed at D’Olive 
Creek; and  
 
WHEREAS,  ADECA  grant monies are available for 80% of the construction cost 
for the Pedestrian Bridge @ D’Olive Creek West project with the City paying 100% 
of design, engineering, and permitting costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, $10,500 was previously appropriated in Ordinance 2011-53 for design 
and environmental permitting; and 
 
WHEREAS, total project cost is $94,659.30 (construction-$88,159.30 + 
engineering-$17,000):  ADECA will reimburse $70,528 (80% of construction) and the 
City match is $24,132 ($17,632 (construction) + $6,500 (engineering $17,000-$10,500=$6,500 

balance). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that  

 Funds in the amount of $24,132 for engineering & 20% construction match 
from the Lodging Tax Fund are appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal 
Year 2013 budget for the Pedestrian Bridge @ D'Olive Creek West project. 

 The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any documents required in order 
for the City of Daphne to participate in Pedestrian Bridge @ D'Olive Creek 
West project. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2013. 
        
                                                                       
                           

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Dane Haygood , Mayor 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

208



 ORDINANCE NO. 2013-18 
 
An Ordinance setting forth the authorization of certain City Officials as designated 
signatories on various accounts of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:  The following Officers of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be and hereby are 
officially designated as the appropriate and authorized signatories on the various City 
accounts of the City of Daphne, Alabama: 
 
    Mayor    Dane Haygood 
    Treasurer/Finance Director Kimberly Briley 
    Councilmember   John L. Lake 
    Councilmember    Pat Rudicell 
     
 
SECTION 2:  All checks, drafts, and all other financial transfers shall be signed by two (2) 
of the above-designated signatories. 
 
SECTION 3:  Any ordinance or resolution previously adopted which in any way conflicts 
with this Ordinance is hereby deemed repealed in its entirety with the exclusion of 
Resolution 2007-67 which prescribes signatories for the Confiscated Funds account. 
 
SECTION 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any part of this 
Ordinance is declared invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
declaration shall not affect the remaining parts. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 
THIS _______day of _______________, 2013. 
 
        
 
 
       ____________________ 
       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________                             
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

209



ORDINANCE 2013-19  
 

ROUND-A-BOUT @ COUNTY ROAD 13 & 64 – ATRIP PROJECT: 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL PROJECT WITH BALDWIN COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Round-A-Bout at CR13 & 64 is an approved Alabama 
Transportation Rehabilitation and Improvement Program (ATRIP)  project and 
grant monies are available for this project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City can entered into an agreement with Baldwin County for 
construction of a Round-A-Bout at CR13 &  CR64 for 50% cost share  of the match 
monies required by the grant 
 
WHEREAS, the estimated cost for the City and the County is $335,838.50/each; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Round-A-Bout Improvements are needed for enhanced traffic flow. 
   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that  

 Funds in the amount of $43,338.50 for engineering from the 2012 
Construction  Fund are appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 
2013 budget for   Round-A-Bout at County Road 13 & 64. 

 Estimated total project cost of $1,411,677  for construction/engineering of 
which ALDOT will reimburse $740,000 (City’s portion- $335,838.50 and 

County’s portion $335,838.50 ). 
 The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any documents required in order 

for the City of Daphne to participate in such intersection project. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2013. 
        
                                                                       
                           

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Dane Haygood , Mayor 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

210


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL
	Council Mintues - March 4
	Council Minutes - March 5 - Sp Called
	Council Minutes - March 11
	Public Hearing Info
	Report of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes
	B&P Minutes - February
	B&P Minutes - March
	ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES MARCH 13
	Public Works Committee Meeting Minutes
	Report of Special Boards
	DRA Minutes - February 27
	IDB Minutes
	Planning Commission Minutes
	Report of Officers
	Parade Permits
	AL League Vote  Delegate
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2013-14 - RES - GOVDEALSCOM - Patrol Car
	2013-15 - RES - ADECA Pedestrian Bridge @ D'Olive Creek West-2013
	2013-16 - RES - Concrete Negotiated-2013
	2013-17 - RES - Asphalt
	2013-18 - RES - PlasticPipe
	2013-19 - RES - RockMaterial
	2013-20 - RES - OffSupp
	Backup to 2013-20 - RES
	2013-21 - RES - PD Livescan Fingerprint System-2013
	2013-22 - RES - Rock-Recycled Material
	2013-12 - ORD - Amend LUDO - Low Impact Development Appex O
	Backup to 2013-12 - ORD
	2013-14 - ORD - REZONE - Lynne R. Brown
	Backup to 2013-14 - ORD
	2013-15 - ORD - Four Cent Gas Tax Profit Drive Ext-Addtl Appropriation
	2013-16 - ORD - Seven Cent Gas Tax - Road Striping-FY13
	2013-17 - ORD - Pedestrian Bridge@ D'Olive Creek - ADECA
	2013-18 - ORD - Signature Authority-2013
	2013-19 - ORD - Round-A-Bout at CR13  CR64 - BC-ALDOT Intergovernmental Project



